
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama

Date: TUESDAY, 12 FEBRUARY 2019
Time: 11.00 am
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS

Members: Marianne Fredericks (Chairman)
Graham Packham (Deputy Chairman)
Randall Anderson
John Chapman
Neil Constable

Enquiries: Martin Newton 
tel. no.: 020 7332 3154
martin.newton@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm

N.B. Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or visual recording

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive

Public Document Pack



2

AGENDA

**N.B. THE FIRST 15 MINUTES OF THIS MEETING WILL TAKE THE FORM OF AN ‘IN 
CAMERA’ SESSION WITH COMMITTEE MEMBERS, THE INTERNAL AUDITOR AND 

THE TOWN CLERK ONLY PRESENT**

Part 1 - Public Agenda

1. APOLOGIES

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

3. PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 14 November 2018.

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 6)

4. PUBLIC OUTSTANDING ACTIONS
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information
(Pages 7 - 8)

5. AUDIT UPDATE
Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management.

For Information
(Pages 9 - 24)

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & RISK 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.



3

Part 2 - Non Public Agenda

9. NON PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2018.

For Decision
(Pages 25 - 30)

10. NON PUBLIC OUTSTANDING ACTIONS
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information
(Pages 31 - 32)

11. DATA FUTURES
Oral update of the Principal on progress on required resources as requested by the 
Committee at its November 2018 meeting.

For Information

12. RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION OF TEACHING STAFF
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 33 - 36)

13. SAFEGUARDING AND EXTREMISM
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 37 - 42)

14. RISK REGISTER
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 43 - 78)

15. ANNUAL TRANSPARENT APPROACH TO COSTING (TRAC) RETURN 2017/18
Report of the Principal.

For Decision
(Pages 79 - 102)

16. FINANCE REVIEW PERIOD 9
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 103 - 120)



4

17. PROFILE IN LEAGUE TABLES
Report of the Principal.  TO FOLLOW

For Information

18. SUCCESSION PLANNING / WORKFORCE PLAN
Report of the Principal.  

For Information
(Pages 121 - 128)

19. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

20. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA

Wednesday, 14 November 2018 

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board 
of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama held at Committee Room 2 - 

2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Wednesday, 14 November 2018 at 10.30 am

Present

Members:
Marianne Fredericks (Chairman)
Graham Packham (Deputy Chairman)
Randall Anderson

John Chapman
Christina Coker O.B.E.

In Attendance
Vivienne Littlechild

Officers:
Sandeep Dwesar
Graeme Hood

- Barbican Centre
- GSMD

Katharine Lewis - GSMD
Jeremy Newton - GSMD
Martin Newton - Town Clerk's Department
Jonathon Poynor - Barbican Centre
Pat Stothard - Head of Audit and Risk Management
Sarah Wall - GSMD

1. "IN CAMERA" SESSION 
Before the commencement of formal proceedings, the Committee held its usual 
“in camera” session attended only by the Head of Audit and Risk Management, 
the representative from the external auditor (Moore Stephens), and the Town 
Clerk’s representative.    

2. CHRISTINA COKER 
The Chairman, on behalf of Members, paid tribute to Christina Coker who was 
attending her final meeting of the Committee at the end of a 3 period (nine 
year) spell as a governor. The Chairman drew attention to Christina Coker’s 
dedicated and invaluable past work with the Board and its committees, 
commented that during her tenure as Chairman of the Committee the number 
of risks on the register had fallen from 50 to 16, and said that she would be 
missed by all at the School. The Committee endorsed these comments and 
Christina Coker thanked Members for their kind words.

3. APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Neil Constable and Deputy John Bennett.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



4. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
There were no declarations. 

5. PUBLIC MINUTES 
RESOLVED – That the public minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2018 
be approved, subject to the inclusion of apologies for absence from Vivienne 
Littlechild and a new paragraph commencing in the first bullet point on page 2 
beginning ‘A Governor commented…..’.

On matters arising, the following matters were raised:-

 On item 6 relating to the catering contract, the Chairman informed 
Members that it was accepted by the Chairman of the CoL Audit and 
Risk Management Committee that, as the delay was down to the Police 
not signing the contract, it was unfair that the School were penalised with 
a risk that it had no control over.  

 The Committee noted that a further update on the status of the MoU on 
GYA would be provided.

 In respect of accommodation, a report would be made to the Board in 
February 2019, and it was noted that at its next meeting on 19 
November 2018 the Board would be asked to approve the establishment 
of a Capital Projects Strategic Working Group.

  
6. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 

The Town Clerk reported on outstanding actions.

The following matters were raised:-

 Members noted that the E-Learning Technologist would commence 
duties in January 2019 and would assist with development of IT 
pedagogy to help ensure the School were ‘in the right place’.

 The Committee was informed that the report back on the risk register 
would be in April 2019.

 With reference to the comment earlier from the Chairman, A Member 
suggested that the catering contract action be relegated to the bottom of 
the risk register list with a reference that the outstanding work was 
awaiting action by others.

RECEIVED.

7. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE AND ANNUAL REPORT 
The Committee had before it the report of the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management on the internal audit annual report and opinion for the year ended 
31 July 2018.

Page 2



The following matters were raised:-

 The Head of Audit and Risk Management confirmed the moderate 
assurance opinion in view of audits undertaken during the year in 
question and the hope that this assurance would be able to change. He 
said that there were no outstanding recommendations; that target dates 
required updating; and that there was a requirement to know that the 
audit recommendations were being implemented. He confirmed that the 
catering contract continued to show as a limited assurance, not 
withstanding views made earlier in the meeting, as the contract 
remained unsigned. 

 It was noted that the member and officers’ declarations risk was 
corporate, not just linked to the School, although the Office for Students 
would be likely to look at an overall identified risk of this kind. The Town 
Clerk confirmed that 1 or 2 co-opted Board members declaration forms 
were outstanding but that this was likely to be more recent appointees 
that may not have received forms to complete and return.

 The Head of Audit and Risk Management confirmed that any previously 
identified issues not forming part of the current report indicated that 
implementation of outstanding matters had now taken place.

 The Director of Operations and Buildings said that on the asset 
management strategy he was working with the City Surveyor aligned 
with the CoL’s estates strategy. 

 Members were informed that with regard to data quality – resilience, the 
School would be submitting a Business Plan for increased resource and 
support in this expanding area.  

RECEIVED.

8. SCHEDULE FOR RISK DEEP DIVE REVIEW 
The Committee had before it the paper of the Acting Head of Finance and 
Business Administration on the schedule for risk deep dive review.

RESOLVED – That the future schedule for risk deep dive review set out in the 
report be approved, subject to the inclusion of major disaster and IT data 
recovery for the July 2019 meeting. 

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
There were no questions. 

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
There were no urgent items. 

Page 3



11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

12. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 
2018 be approved. 

13. RISK REGISTER 
The Committee considered the Principal’s report on the risk register. 

14. DATA FUTURES 
Members had before them the report of the Principal on data futures.

15. BREXIT MITIGATION STRATEGY - MUSIC DEPARTMENT 
The Committee considered the report of the Vice Principal and Director of 
Music on a Brexit mitigation strategy for the Music Department.

16. STANDING ORDER 40 
The Committee agreed to continue its consideration of business after the usual 
2 hour period for meetings.

17. AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 
With the agreement of the Chairman, Members considered the late revised 
paper on the Committee Annual Report.

18. ANNUAL ACCOUNTABILITY RETURN 
The Committee had before them the report of the Acting Head of Finance and 
Business Administration on the annual accountability return.

19. ACCOUNTS DIRECTION 
The Committee considered the report of the Principal on the accounts direction.

20. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The Committee considered the report of the Chief Operating and Financial 
Officer on the audited financial statements. 

21. FINANCIAL COMMENTARY 
The Acting Head of Finance and Business Administration reported on the 
financial commentary.  

22. FINANCE REVIEW 
With the agreement of the Chairman, the Principal provided a late report on the 
School management information ‘dashboard’ 2018/19 – September 2018.

23. SCHOOL BUDGET REPORT 2019/2020 
Members had before them the Principal’s report on the school budget 2019/20.

Page 4



24. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
There were no questions. 

25. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 
There were no urgent items. 

The meeting ended at 1.21 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Martin Newton 
tel. no.: 020 7332 3154
martin.newton@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama 

Outstanding Public Actions Log

Item Date Action Officer 
responsible

To be 
completed/ 

progressed to 
next stage

Progress Update

1. 21/07/17 Development of IT Pedagogy fails to 
keep pace with competition
The Chairman noted that any risk 
associated with this area was now 
extremely low. She suggested that the 
Principal might wish to keep this under 
review, given that digital development 
forms part of the new Strategic Plan.

Principal E-Learning Technologist to  
commence duties in January 
2019 and would assist with 
development of IT pedagogy 
to help ensure the School 
were ‘in the right place’.

2. 09/10/18 Risk Register
Poor profile in league tables, data 
futures, succession planning / workforce 
plan and safeguarding

Principal Report back to the Committee 
in January 2019.

3. 09/10/18 Catering Contract
Confirmation awaited of numbers of 
students, allergies and holders of EPI 
pens.

Principal November 2018 meeting - To 
be relegated to bottom of risk 
register list with a reference 
that the outstanding work was 
awaiting action by others.

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 8



 Committee: Date:
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of 
Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama

12 February 2019

Subject: 
Internal Audit Update Report

Public

Report of:
Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management

For Information

Summary

This report provides an update on Internal Audit activity undertaken at the Guildhall 
School since the last report made in November 2018.  

Delivery of 2018-19 planned audits is in progress and the plan status is outlined at 
Appendix 1.  One audit is awaiting finalisation (Student Affairs), fieldwork has been 
completed in respect of a further audit (Strategic Planning), two audits are at 
assignment planning stage (Income Generation and Student Programme), one audit 
has not been initiated (Accommodation Strategy) and one audit (Budget-Setting and 
Financial Management) has been deferred in consultation with School Management.  

At the time of the last Internal Audit Update to this Committee in November 
2018, there were eleven live high priority recommendations (nine amber, two 
red) and one recommendation where the School’s management had accepted 
the risk.  Since that time, the ‘risk accepted’ recommendation has been agreed 
by management, making it live, and implementation of one recommendation 
has been evidenced.  As at the end of January 2019, there are eleven live, 
agreed high priority recommendations (nine amber, two red).   The School’s 
live high priority recommendations are detailed at Appendix 2.  

A recent planning meeting has been held between Internal Audit, the Chair and 
Deputy of this Committee, and School Management; the proposed high-level audit 
plan for 2019-20 and the statement of intent for 2020-22 is set out in Appendix 3.  

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to note the status of planned audit work for 2018-19, the 
live high priority recommendations position as at the end of January 2019 and 
the status of high-level audit planning for 2019 to 2022. 

Main Report

Background

1. This report provides an update on audit work progressed since the November 
2018 meeting of this Committee.  The status of planned 2018-19 audits is 
outlined at Appendix 1.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



2. Recommendation follow-up enquiries have confirmed that as at the end of 
January 2019 there are nine live amber priority recommendations and two live red 
priority recommendations related to the School. A breakdown of live high priority 
recommendations is provided at Appendix 2.

3. The high-level Internal Audit Plan 2019-2020 and a statement of intent for the 
period 2020-2021 to 2021-22 (Appendix 3) have been discussed between 
Internal Audit, the Chair and Deputy of this Committee, and School Management.  
Further discussion will take place to agree the scope of individual audit 
assignments and preferred timing; the outcome will be reported to the next 
meeting of this Committee.

Delivery of Internal Audit Work

4. The status of the 2018-19 Audit Plan is outlined at Appendix 1 and includes 
deferral of the audit of Budget-Setting and Financial Management, as agreed with 
School Management due to timing and workloads during Q4.

Student Affairs

5. The draft audit report has been circulated in respect of Student Affairs (Student 
Support) and Internal Audit are liaising with School Management to agree the 
management response.  The finalised report will encompass the outcome of 
examination of arrangements in respect of the following:

 Clear aims of service provision, linked to strategic goals, and measurable 
objectives;

 Performance monitoring to evaluate whether delivery outcomes are as 
intended;

 Management of any services provided under contract to ensure that 
specifications are met;

 Financial management – controls over payments to ensure that these 
are in line with contract / on the basis of goods or services received and 
monitoring to ensure that expenditure is in line with budget; and 

 Periodic review / benchmarking of service provision and consideration of 
alternative delivery models, where appropriate

Strategic Planning

6. Fieldwork has been completed in respect of this audit which focused on 
examination of the School’s strategic planning framework including arrangements 
for stakeholder input, development of SMART objectives and related KPIs, 
delivery monitoring and on-going review.  An audit exit meeting has been 
arranged for early February to confirm the audit findings, after which the report 
will be drafted to encompass the outcome of examination of arrangements in 
respect of the following:

 A strategic planning framework enabling identification of long-term objectives 
and prioritisation of activities to achieve these; 

Page 10



 Stakeholder engagement in Plan formulation and arrangements for 
communication of Plan developments, to promote buy-in; 

 Development of SMART objectives and related KPIs to facilitate evaluation of 
Plan delivery; 

 Monitoring implementation of the Strategic Plan through appropriate forums; 
 Mechanisms for review and update of the Strategic Plan to ensure it remains 

relevant and up to date.

Remainder of 2018-19 Plan

7. Audit assignment planning is in progress in respect of Income Generation and 
Student Programme (formerly Enhanced Student Offer); it is anticipated that the 
latter will focus on the framework for evaluating and defining the student 
programme offer.  Internal Audit are liaising with School Management in respect 
of both audits to agree the detailed scope of work.

8. Extended follow-up work in respect of the School’s Accommodation Strategy 
cannot be initiated until the Strategy has been approved, enabling the remaining 
live recommendation from the 2017-18 Sundial Court Project Governance Audit 
(original target date July 2018) to be closed.  Internal Audit has been advised that 
the Strategy is on the agenda for the Board meeting in February 2019. 

Implementation of Audit Recommendations

9. Internal Audit has confirmed that at the end of January 2019, there are two live 
red priority recommendations.  Recent follow up enquiries have also identified a 
reduction in outstanding amber priority recommendations from ten at the time of 
the last Committee, to nine.  One of these nine recommendations was previously 
reported to this Committee as ‘risk accepted’ and following receipt of an updated 
management response, this is now live.

10.Live high priority recommendation details are shown in Appendix 2 and reflect 
both original target implementation dates and the latest revised date, where one 
exists.  The summary position is as follows:

 Five recommendations have not been implemented (including one red priority 
recommendation).

 Management updates are overdue in respect of two of these not implemented 
recommendations: Talent Management Strategy and Workforce Plan.

 Six recommendations have been partially implemented (including one red 
priority recommendation).

11.The two live red priority recommendations arose from the 2017-18 audit of 
Catering (including Student Bar) and since that time a new City Corporation 
contract has been rolled out.  Service provision commenced in September 2018 
and as at the end of January 2019, this contract has not been signed.  Internal 
Audit acknowledges that progression of signing of the contract is outside of the 
control of School Management.  

Page 11



13. One of these red priority recommendations cannot be categorised as 
implemented until the contract is formally agreed and signed.  The remaining red 
priority recommendation, relating to external inspections of Health and Safety, 
has been categorised as partially implemented as the specific issue identified at 
the time of audit has been addressed.  A revised target timescale of April 2019 for 
full implementation has been supplied to allow progress to be demonstrated in 
addressing implementation of recommendations which arose from the December 
2018 external Health and Safety audit. 

14. Internal Audit will continue to liaise with all recommendation owners to determine 
the progress of implementation of outstanding issues, closing down the 
recommendations upon receipt of appropriate evidence.

Internal Audit Plan 2018-2019 and proposals to 2021

15.The overall Internal Audit Strategy is developed through:

 Examination of the Corporate Plan and the School’s strategic objectives to 
identify priorities, key projects and change programmes.

 Examination of risk information on Pentana risk management system, risk 
mitigation actions, and regular risk updates to this Committee.

 Consideration of key themes identified by the Internal Audit partner, Mazars, 
the London Audit Group, and from discussion with the Heads of a number of 
corporate functions.

 Consultation with Chief Officers or nominated senior managers to identify any 
particular assurance requirements (for example funding / grant verification 
work), areas of concern, and operational risks.

 Consideration of previous audit work and assurance outcomes, including any 
instances of fraud and irregularity.

 Consideration of feedback received in respect of audit coverage from the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee and this Committee.

12.As part of the annual audit planning process, a meeting was held in January 2019 
between Internal Audit, the Chair and Deputy of this Committee, and School 
Management; the proposed high-level audit plan for 2019-20 and the statement of 
intent for 2020-22 is set out in Appendix 3.  

13.The Audit Plan proposals for the School have been prepared using a risk-focused 
approach and taking into account the requirements of the Office for Students - 
Audit Code of Practice, part of the Terms and Conditions of Funding for Higher 
Education Institutions to 31 July 2019. 

Conclusion

14.Delivery of the 2018 – 19 Audit Plan is ongoing. One audit is awaiting finalisation, 
fieldwork has been completed in respect of a further audit, two audits are at 
assignment planning stage, one cannot be initiated until after February 2019, and 
one has been deferred to 2019-20 in consultation with School Management. 

Page 12



12.There are two live red priority recommendations as at the end of January 2019 
and there are nine live amber priority recommendations.  Internal Audit will 
continue to liaise with recommendation owners to determine the status of 
implementation, obtain evidence to close down recommendations and obtain 
revised target dates for implementation where appropriate, updating Members of 
this Committee accordingly.

13.The annual audit planning process has been initiated and takes into account the 
Office for Students requirements for Internal Audit provision. Following a recent 
meeting with key stakeholders, initial proposals for audit coverage in respect of 
the School have been developed and feedback is requested from this Committee. 

Appendices

Appendix 1 Internal Audit Plan Status 2018-19
Appendix 2 Live High Priority Recommendations Position
Appendix 3 Audit Plan Proposals 2019-20 and Statement of Intent for 2020-2022.

Pat Stothard, Head of Audit and Risk Management
E: Pat.Stothard@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Appendix 1

Guildhall School Internal Audit Plan Delivery 2018-19

Recommendations
Project Status Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

Student Affairs (Student Support)

Deferred from 2017-18 in agreement with School management, this 
audit is focused on examination of the arrangements in operation within 
Student Affairs for the following:

 Clear aims of service provision, linked to strategic goals, and 
measurable objectives 

 Performance monitoring to evaluate whether delivery outcomes are 
as intended 

 Management of any services provided under contract to ensure that 
specifications are met 

 Financial management – controls over payments to ensure that 
these are in line with contract / on the basis of goods or services 
received and monitoring to ensure that expenditure is in line with 
budget 

 Periodic review / benchmarking of service provision and 
consideration of alternative delivery models, where appropriate 

Draft Report - - - - -

Strategic Planning

An examination of the Guildhall School’s strategic planning framework, 
including arrangements for stakeholder input, development of SMART 
objectives and related KPIs, delivery monitoring and on-going review.  
Assurance to be obtained in respect of the following arrangements:

Fieldwork 
Complete

- - - - -

P
age 15



Recommendations
Project Status Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

 A strategic planning framework has been established which enables 
identification of long-term objectives and prioritisation of activities to 
achieve these; 

 Stakeholder engagement in Plan formulation and arrangements for 
communication of Plan developments, to promote buy-in; 

 Development of SMART objectives and related KPIs to facilitate 
evaluation of Plan delivery; 

 Monitoring implementation of the Strategic Plan through appropriate 
forums; and 

 Mechanisms for review and update of the Strategic Plan to ensure it 
remains relevant and up to date. 

Student Programme (Enhanced Student Offer) 

The scope of this audit is under discussion with the School’s 
management but is expected to focus on the framework for developing 
and evaluating the student programme offer.

Planning - - - - -

Income Generation

Maximising income from grant funding, student fees and other income 
is a priority for the school. This audit will look at the strategy used to 
ensure income is maximised, as well as the mechanisms for ensuring 
that income is received in full.

Planning - - - - -

P
age 16



Recommendations
Project Status Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

Budget-Setting and Financial Management

The focus of this audit is financial management (processes, 
procedures, and controls) and longer-term strategic financial planning 
(approach, systems, capabilities) in/for the School. 

Deferred to 
Q1 2019-20

- - - - -

Accommodation Strategy

Extended follow-up of the recommendations from the Sundial Court 
Project Governance audit.

Not initiated - - - - -

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 18



Appendix 2

Guildhall School – Live High Priority Recommendations as at 31st January 2019

Audit Area Outstanding Action Original 
Target 
Date

Revised
Target 
Date

Status & Management Comments

Satellite Sites

Collaboration 
Agreements

Development of full formal 
collaboration agreements (MoUs) 
with partnership satellite sites

Oct 2017 March 2019 Partially Implemented.

The target date for full implementation has been further revised since 
the November meeting of the School’s Audit & Risk Management 
Committee from September 2018 to March 2019.  

Management comment (22/11/18): only the Norwich MoU has been 
updated and signed. 

Succession Planning, Talent Management & Staff Development

Talent 
Management 
Strategy

Incorporation of a talent 
management strategy within the 
Professional Development 
Framework

Jan 2018 Dec 2018 Not Implemented.

Management comment (17/08/18): Following this initial plan the City 
started developing a talent management strategy as part of the HR 
transformation.  We therefore delayed our plan to ensure we could use 
the expertise of the new Organisational Development team in 
Corporate HR and so we could align with any corporate plan.  This also 
links into a new appraisal system that the City are currently trialling and 
will launched across the corporation from April 2019. 

The overall objectives in the School Strategic plan have now been 
agreed and a more detailed 5 year business plan is now being 
developed and the workforce plan and talent management will need to 
reflect the new business plan.

Workforce Plan A workforce plan to be developed in 
line with the new Strategic Plan

April 2018 Dec 2018 Not Implemented.

Management comment (17/08/18): With changes in senior staff at the 
School and further development of the strategic plan, and the 
development of the corporate HR transformation plans we have 

P
age 19



Appendix 2

Audit Area Outstanding Action Original 
Target 
Date

Revised
Target 
Date

Status & Management Comments

delayed finalising our workforce plan to ensure we are able to take into 
account all relevant factors. The overall objectives in the School 
Strategic plan have now been agreed and a more detailed 5 year 
business plan is now being developed and the workforce plan and 
talent management will need to reflect the new business plan.

Sundial Court Project Governance (Lease Renewal)

Accommodation 
Strategy

Development of an accommodation 
strategy in line with the School’s 
strategic aims.

July 2018 Feb 2019 Partially Implemented.

Management comment (15/11/18): At the November Board of 
Governors (BOG) a Capital Projects Working Group will be 
established. This group will review this strategy and make 
recommendations to the next BOG in February.

Data Quality

Returns 
Management

Introduction of central 
arrangements for oversight of 
returns management.

Sept 2018 Dec 2019 Not Implemented.

Management Comment (15/11/18): HESA have introduced data futures 
which will transform how HEI's hold, manage and report on data. As 
this is an OFS requirement the School will need to comply with this.

Resilience Determination of arrangements for 
continuation of student return 
management in the event of staff 
turnover.

Dec 2019 - Not Implemented.  

Internal Audit comment: This recommendation was initially ‘not 
agreed’. 

Management Comment (19/11/18): HESA have introduced Data 
Futures which will transform how HEIs collect, hold and report on data.  
The School will have to comply as an OFS institution.  This will deliver 
and above the points raised on this audit. Target implementation date 
31st December 2019. 

P
age 20



Appendix 2

Audit Area Outstanding Action Original 
Target 
Date

Revised
Target 
Date

Status & Management Comments

Catering (including Student Bar)

Contractual 
Documentation: 
RED PRIORITY

Contracts and supporting 
documentation, for example service 
specification and tender 
submissions, should be accessible 
to contract managers and form the 
basis of contract management 
activity.

Sept 2018 TBC Not Implemented.

Internal Audit comment: this corporate contract, in respect of the 
service which commenced at the beginning of September 2018, has 
not yet been signed and this action is outside of the control of the 
School’s management.

Contractual KPI 
monitoring

Full records of KPI monitoring, at 
the frequency prescribed by the 
contract, should be maintained as 
part of the contract management 
process.  

Sept 2018 March 2019 Partially Implemented.

The target date for full implementation has been further revised since 
the November meeting of the School’s Audit & Risk Management 
Committee from December 2018 to March 2019.  

Management Comment (02/01/19):The first KPI review took place in 
December and the team here are meeting with other departments/City 
Procurement to go through their experience and scoring on the 11th 
January 2019.

Internal Audit comment: The new contract specifies KPIs and 
arrangements for monitoring.  Revised target date supplied for full 
implementation to enable 3 months of monitoring activity to be 
demonstrated.

Subsidy and 
Profit Share 
Arrangements

Formalisation of the terms of 
financial arrangements related to 
contract delivery.

Sept 2018 TBC Partially Implemented

Internal Audit comment: the new contract formalises the terms of 
financial arrangements related to contract delivery. 
Internal Audit comment: this corporate contract, in respect of the 
service which commenced at the beginning of September 2018, has 
not yet been signed and this action is outside of the control of the 
School’s management.

P
age 21



Appendix 2

Audit Area Outstanding Action Original 
Target 
Date

Revised
Target 
Date

Status & Management Comments

Contractual 
Sanctions for 
Poor 
Contractual 
Performance

Management to ensure that 
provision is made within contracts 
for appropriate sanctions in the 
event of repeated poor 
performance.

Sept 2018 TBC Partially Implemented.

Internal Audit Comment: Internal Audit comment: this corporate 
contract, in respect of the service which commenced at the beginning 
of September 2018, has not yet been signed and this action is outside 
of the control of the School’s management.

Management of 
External Health 
& Safety 
Inspection 
Reports – RED 
PRIORITY

Management to ensure that: 1) any 
disagreement over the outcome of 
external H&S inspections are 
resolved at the earliest opportunit7, 
and 2) contract management 
reporting to clearly reflect the 
progress of implementation of 
‘priority 1’ H&S recommendations.

May 2018 April 2019 Partially Implemented.

The target date for full implementation has been further revised since 
the November meeting of the School’s Audit & Risk Management 
Committee from December 2018 to April 2019.  

Internal Audit comment: Disagreement over the H&S inspection report 
examined at the time of audit fieldwork has been resolved. 

Management comment: The Health & Safety audit took place in 
December 2018 but monthly reporting won’t start till mid-January 2019.  
Revised target date supplied in order for there to be several sets of 
monthly minutes to demonstrate progress in implementation of 
recommendations.  

In summary:

 There are eleven live high priority recommendations as at the end of January 2019.
 Five recommendations have not been implemented (including one red priority recommendation) and management updates are overdue in respect of two 

of these: Talent Management Strategy and Workforce Plan.
 Six recommendations have been partially implemented (including one red priority recommendation).

P
age 22



APPENDIX 3

Guildhall School - Draft Internal Audit 3 Year Strategy 2019 - 2022

Audit Title 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Budget-Setting & Financial Management 
Facilities Management (Barbican & Guildhall School) 
Repairs & Maintenance (Barbican & Guildhall School) 
Data Futures 
Fraud Risk Management 
Student Petty Cash (Spot Check) 
Diversifying Funding / Fundraising TBC TBC
Internationalisation TBC TBC
Under 18s Offer TBC TBC
Guildhall School & Barbican Alliance TBC TBC
GDPR TBC TBC
IT – Digital &Technology TBC TBC
Health & Safety TBC TBC
Capital Expenditure & Procurement TBC TBC

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 99

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 103

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 121

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Outstanding Actions
	5 Audit Update
	Appendix 1 Jan 2019 Schedule of 2018_19 Audit Work
	Appendix 2 Guildhall School January 2019 Live High Priority Recommendations
	Appendix 3 GSMD Draft Audit 3 Year Strategy 3 Jan 2019

	9 Non Public Minutes
	10 Non Public Outstanding Actions
	12 Recruitment and Retention of Teaching Staff
	13 Safeguarding and Extremism
	14 Risk Register
	Appendix Risk Register February 2019

	15 Annual Transparent Approach to Costing (TRAC) Return 2017/18
	Annex 1 - TRAC1718_10007825 Results file
	Annex 2 - TRACT Return

	16 Finance Review Period 9
	Copy of GSMD_Finance Review and Management Information_P9_FINAL

	18 Succession Planning / Workforce Plan

